
CITY OF CEDARBURG 
PLAN COMMISSION 
November 6, 2023 

A regular meeting of the Plan Commission, City of Cedarburg, Wisconsin, will be held at 7:00 p.m. on 
Monday, November 6, 2023.  Attendees have the option of joining the meeting in person at City Hall, 
W63N645 Washington Avenue, upper level, Council Chambers, or online via the following Zoom link: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82754633027 

AGENDA 

1. CALL TO ORDER - Mayor Mike O’Keefe 

2. ROLL CALL: Present -  Mayor Mike O’Keefe, Council Member Patricia Thome, Vice
Chairman Kip Kinzel, Jack Arnett, Adam Voltz, Sig Strautmanis, Tom 
Wiza 

  Also Present -  Jon Censky, City Planner 

3. STATEMENT OF PUBLIC NOTICE

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – October 2, 2023

5. COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS FROM CITIZENS

REGULAR BUSINESS; AND ACTION THEREON 

* A. Petitioner: Craig Caliendo- Stonelake Condominium 
Request: Development Agreement and Condominium Plat/Documents 

approval.  
Briefing: The applicant is seeking development agreement and condominium 

approval for the Stonelake two-family project located at 6660 Susan 
Lane 

Tax Key No.: 03-022-14-006.00 
Current Zoning: Rd-1/PUD 
Aldermanic District:  1
Previous Discussion Dates:  

* B. Petitioner: Briohn Construction Inc. 
Request: Business Site and Operational Plan Approval 
Briefing: Petitioner is requesting approval of the site, landscape, exterior 

lighting, and architectural plan approval for a 155,000 square foot 
distribution and warehouse building to be located on lot #4 of the 
Business Park  

Tax Key No.: 13-022- 
Current Zoning: M-3 Business Park 
Aldermanic District: 7 
Previous Discussion Dates: 

7. COMMENTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS BY PLAN COMMISSIONERS

**8. MAYOR’S ANNOUNCEMENTS

9. ADJOURNMENT



* Information attached for Commission Members; available through City Clerk’s office. 
** This topic is to be limited to such items as establishing the next meeting date, items for the next agenda, reminders of scheduled 

community events, etc. 
 

City of Cedarburg is an affirmative action and equal opportunity employer. All qualified applicants will receive consideration for 
employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, disability, age, sexual orientation, gender identity, national origin, veteran status, or 
genetic information. City of Cedarburg is committed to providing access, equal opportunity, and reasonable accommodation for individuals 
with disabilities in employment, its services, programs, and activities. To request reasonable accommodation, contact the Clerk’s Office at 

(262) 375-7606 or email: cityhall@ci.cedarburg.wi.us. 
 

MEMBERS – PLEASE NOTIFY CITY CLERK’S 
OFFICE IF UNABLE TO ATTEND MEETING 

 
It is possible that a quorum of members of the Common Council may attend Plan Commission meetings held the first Monday of each 

month at 7:00 p.m. No business will be conducted by the Common Council and no action will be taken.  Attendance is for the purpose of 
information gathering and exchange. 

 
 
10/31/2023 
 
 
 

mailto:cityhall@ci.cedarburg.wi.us


    

      CITY OF CEDARBURG           PC20231002-1 
                                                            PLAN COMMISSION                      UNAPPROVED 

 OCTOBER 2, 2023 
 

        
A regular meeting of the Plan Commission of the City of Cedarburg, Wisconsin, was held on Monday, 
October 2, 2023, at City Hall, W63 N645 Washington Avenue, second floor, Council Chambers, and 
online utilizing the Zoom app.    
 
Mayor Michael O’Keefe called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  
 
Roll Call:  Present -      Mayor Michael O’Keefe, Council Member Patricia Thome, Adam 

Voltz, Jack Arnett, Kip Kinzel, Tom Wiza, Sig Strautmanis 
  

                   Also Present -           City Administrator Mikko Hilvo (Zoom), City Planner Jon Censky, 
City Clerk Tracie Sette, interested citizens and news media. 

 
STATEMENT OF PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
At Mayor O’Keefe’s request, City Clerk Sette verified that notice of this meeting was provided to the 
public by forwarding the agenda to the City’s official newspaper, the News Graphic, to all news media 
and citizens who requested copies, and by posting in accordance with the Wisconsin Open Meetings 
Law. Citizens present were welcomed and encouraged to provide their input during the citizen comment 
portion of the meeting. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Thome, seconded by Commissioner Kinzel, to approve the Plan 
Commission minutes from September 6, 2023. Motion carried without a negative vote with 
Commissioner Strautmanis abstaining as he was absent from the September 6 meeting. 
 
COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS FROM CITIZENS - None 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
C.WIESLER’S PETITION FOR CONDITIONAL USE APPROVAL TO OPERATE AN 
AIRBNB IN THE UPPER LEVEL UNITS OF THE COMMERCIAL BUILDING LOCATED AT 
W61N493 WASHINGTON AVENUE 
 
Mayor O’Keefe opened the Public Hearing at 7:02 p.m. regarding the application for a Conditional Use 
permit to convert the second-floor office space located at W61N491 Washington Avenue (Wiesler’s) 
into a tourist rooming facility (i.e., Airbnb). Planner Censky explained the tourist rooming use will 
occupy the entire second floor. Upon completion of a renovation, it will include two units that will each 
have two bedrooms, a living room, kitchen, and a full bathroom. Final plans have yet to be approved.  
 
Tourist Rooming Homes are listed as permitted by Conditional Use in the B-3 District and consequently, 



PLAN COMMISSION      PC20231002-2 
October 2, 2023                       UNAPPROVED 
 
short-term rentals of this type are prohibited in all other Districts in the City. Tourist Rooming Houses 
are defined as: All lodging places and tourist cabins and cottages, other than hotels and motels, in which 
sleeping accommodations are offered for pay to tourists or transients as regulated under Wisconsin 
Chapter DHS 195. 
 
Staff review indicates that this site has sufficient parking at the rear of the building to support this 
use. Staff believes that this use is appropriate in the downtown area and consistent with other 
Airbnb’s previously approved in this area. Accordingly, staff has no objection subject to the 
following: 
 

1. Any substantiated problems with this use shall be corrected by the owner immediately 
upon notification and if left uncorrected, may result in the revocation of the Conditional Use 
Permit. 

2. Cedarburg Fire Department will follow the State Licensing Bureau for Rooming 
Houses, NFPA 1 Section 20.10 and NFPA 101 Life Safety Code. 

3. Smoke detectors and CO detectors are to be installed and properly maintained. 
4. The operation shall follow the conditions contained in the Conditional Use Permit 

 
Planner Censky explained Wisconsin State law allows anyone, anywhere, to rent their room (as an 
Airbnb) for at least seven (7) consecutive days or longer. The City’s ordinance limits Airbnb’s to the B-
3 District only. The Plan Commission is currently working to revise this ordinance. 
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Kinzel, seconded by Commissioner Thome, to close the Public 
Hearing at 7:09 p.m. Motion carried without a negative vote. 
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Thome, seconded by Commissioner Voltz, to approve the 
Conditional Use Permit subject to staff comments and subject to the applicant submitting a detailed floor 
plan for staff review. Motion carried without a negative vote. 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS 
 
KURT PETRIE, NEWMARK PETITIONED FOR A CONCEPT REVIEW FOR AN 
INDOOR/OUTDOOR SIMULATED GOLF ACTIVITY CENTER 
 
The applicant is seeking consultation regarding a  proposal to develop a unique indoor and outdoor 
golf range on the vacant property located on the north side of Highway 60,  n e a r  the entrance 
drive to the City’s business park. The original proposal was located in the Town of 
Cedarburg and required an annexation. The current proposal is for the parcel of land 
currently located within the City limits. The City Engineers feel this site works best for 
impending utilities. Plan Commission feedback on this proposal is necessary to help the 
applicants decide whether to pursue land acquisition, rezoning/Land Use Plan amendment, and site 
plan approval process. 
 
This project will be patterned after and will be an expansion of t h e  a p p l i c a n t ’ s  existing 
simulated golf facility located in the Village of Germantown. While their existing facility is 
completely indoors and offers eight full swing stations, where teams play against each other while 



PLAN COMMISSION      PC20231002-3 
October 2, 2023                       UNAPPROVED 
 
enjoying food and drink, this proposal will include a similar indoor venue but also an outdoor driving 
range. 
 
Upon completing the rezoning and Land Use Plan amendment process, the applicant will submit 
his detailed site and architectural plans for review and approval. 
 
Council Member Bitter was in attendance and expressed her full support of this project. 
 
Commissioners Voltz and Strautmanis expressed interest in seeing the proposed site plans flipped to 
better consume the corner of the property. They feel it makes a bigger presence.  They also suggested 
the driveway should be located off Hwy I. 
 
CITY OF CEDARBURG REQUESTING APPROVAL OF A CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP 
(CSM) TO DIVIDE THE EXISTING 26.3-ACRE BUSINESS PARK SITE INTO TWO (2) LOTS 
AND TWO (2) OUT LOTS OF THE FOLLOWING SIZES:  10.6-ACRES, 7.52-ACRES, 5.28-
ACRES, AND 2.9-ACRES 
 
A Certified Survey Map (CSM) will serve to divide the existing 26.3-acre business park parcel into two 
lots and two out lots of the following sizes respectively: 10.6-acres, 7.52-acres, 5.28-acres, and 2.9-
acres. The original 26.3-acre parcel was created in 2020 in support of the Wilo project. The current CSM 
containing the divisions is required for the second project under consideration in the business park.  
Plans for that project will be submitted for Plan Commission review and approval at the next Plan 
Commission meeting. The two out lots within this CSM are needed for drainage and stormwater 
management and control. Since there will be no right-of-way dedication as part of this CSM, Common 
Council approval is not necessary. 
 
Staff review indicates full compliance with the dimensional requirements of the M-3 Business Park 
District and therefore approval is recommended subject to the temporary turnaround easement located at 
the west end of Lot 2 be removed from the face of the CSM. 
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Wiza, seconded by Commissioner Thome, to approve the 
Certified Survey Map, dividing the existing 26.3 acres in the Business Park site into two lots and two out 
lots of the following sizes: 10.6-acres, 7.52-acres, 5.28-acres, and 2.9-acres. Motion carried without a 
negative vote. 
 
COMMENTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS BY PLAN COMMISSIONERS - None 
 
MAYOR’S ANNOUNCEMENTS - None 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Arnett, seconded by Commissioner Thome, to adjourn the 
meeting at 7:36 p.m. Motion carried without a negative vote.      
     
           Tracie Sette 
              City Clerk    



STONELAKE DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

To: City of Cedarburg Plan Commission Prepared by: Jonathan P. Censky, City Planner 

Agenda Item:  6.A. Date:  November 6, 2023 

General Information  

Applicant: 
Craig Caliendo, Stonelake Condominium, PUD 
Extension 

Status of Applicant: Owner/Developer 

Location: 6660 Susan Lane 

Requested Action: Development Agreement Recommendation and 
Condominium Documents approval. 

Existing Zoning: Rd-1 PUD 

Surrounding Zoning: M-3, Rs-4, & Rs-5 

Lot Size: 40 acres 
Existing Land Use: Quarry/vacant 
 

Report: 
At the March 6, 2023, meeting, this Commission reviewed and approved the detailed architectural 
plans for the Stone Lake Development. Since that meeting, City Engineer Mike Wieser has been 
working with the developer’s engineer on the follow up engineering plans for this project. With that 
plan review nearly complete, Mr. Caliendo is now prepared to seek approval of the development 
agreement and the condominium documents for the first phase public portion of this project. You will 
recall that the public portion consists of the extension of the public utilities (i.e. sewer and water 
facilities) and the public road extending from the entrance off Susan Land to a point where it loops 
around the south end of the quarry and then north along the east property line to the point where 
the road intersects the future extension to Sheboygan Road.  
 
Attached hereto is the drafted development agreement that Attorney Herbrand and Engineer Wieser 
have drafted. The development agreement is the contract between the City and the Developer that 
establishes responsibilities regarding the provisions of public and private facilities, improvements, 
and any other agreed-upon terms.  
 

As noted, Mr. Caliendo is also here requesting approval of the Condominium documents for the first 
phase of this project. These documents were drafted in accordance with Wis. Stat. Ch. 703, 
Condominiums, and serve as the master deed or bylaws that affect and define the rights and 
obligations of co-owners of these condominium townhomes. Upon its approval and execution, this 
document will be recorded in the Ozaukee County Register of Deeds Office.  Land Division, 
Subdivision and Condominium Regulations found in Sec. 14, Code of Ordinances, City of Cedarburg, 
requires Plan Commission review and recommendation, and Common Council approval of these 
documents. 
 

 



STONELAKE DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

Staff Comments: 
City Staff review indicates that the documents are compliant with State Statutes and since the 
development agreement was drafted by City Attorney Mike Herbrand and City Engineer Mike Wieser 
staff recommends approval subject to City Engineering Department review and approval of the 
grading, drainage, storm water management and erosion control plans. 



39582763 1 

 
 
 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
Stone Lake Condominiums 

Cedarburg, Wisconsin 
 
 

THIS DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (this "Agreement") is made as of the ___ day 
of March 2023, by and between the CITY OF CEDARBURG, a Wisconsin municipal corporation 
(the "City") and Stone Lake Development, Inc. (the "Developer"). 

RECITATIONS 
 

0.1 The Developer owns the Property (as hereinafter defined). The tax key number of 
the Property is provided in Exhibit A; 

0.2 The Developer desires to develop 35 side-by-side duplex condominium buildings 
with a total of 70 units on the Property and record a Declaration of Condominium and related 
instruments (as further described herein) with accompanying Condominium Plat Condominium 
Plat as provided in Exhibit B to create easements for public right-of-way and utilities. 

0.3 The Property is conditionally zoned as a Planned Unit Development Overlay 
District ("PUD") and City Ordinance § 13-1-69(n)(2) requires that the Plan Commission 
recommend, and the City Council approve a Development Agreement which shall include, without 
limitation: 

(a) Timetables for performance/completion of the Improvements (as hereinafter 
defined). 

(b) Performance requirements and standards and assurances for all Improvements 
and/or modifications pertaining to the PUD; 

(c) Inspection requirements; 

(d) Prohibition on any division/combination of real estate lots included within the PUD 
District except as otherwise provided; 

(e) Provisions for lapsing of specific plan approval and automatic reversion of the 
zoning status of the Property to non-PUD District status upon specific changes of 
circumstances or failure of the Development (as hereinafter defined) to materialize 
as agreed to in the Development Agreement; 

(f) Agreements, provisions and/or covenants or additional deed restrictions to be 
recorded against the lot(s) within the PUD District that will perpetually govern the 
use, maintenance and continued preservation and protection of the Development 
and any of its common services, common open areas and/or other facilities; 

  



39582763 2 

(g) Exhibits, drawings or other attachments that depict Improvements, including but 
not limited to structures, fixtures and landscaping and their relative locations in the 
Development area as well as design and engineering details as necessary to 
document to a reasonable degree of specificity the type, character, and nature of 
Improvements to be made within the Development area. 

0.4 The Developer has caused engineering, planning and design services to be 
performed in preparation for construction of certain Improvements for the Development and will 
cause additional such services to be performed as the site is developed; and 

0.5 The Developer intends to contract for installation of certain other site 
Improvements; and 

0.6 The City shall cause inspections and approvals of the Improvements being 
dedicated to the City during installation by Developer based on the City approved civil engineering 
plans. 

AGREEMENT 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitations, which are 
acknowledged to be true and correct, the mutual covenants, representations and warranties set forth 
herein and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are 
hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 

Article 1 
 

Definitions 
 

The following terms, whenever used in this Agreement, shall have the following meanings: 

1.01 "Contract Documents" means all documents now or hereafter evidencing contracts 
with the Developer or its contractors, sub-contractors or affiliates for construction and installment 
of the required Improvements set forth in the Improvement Plans and all addenda and amendments 
thereto. 

1.02 "Improvements" means the improvements as described in § 4.02 below, to be 
installed for the benefit of the Development by the Developer (or by contract with the Developer, 
whether under the Contract Documents as described in § 1.01, or otherwise). 

1.03 "Declaration of Condominium" means the instrument by which the Property 
becomes subject to Chapter 703 of the Wisconsin Statutes.  Said Declaration of Condominium 
shall comply with Chapter 703, include all requirements of Section 703.09, Wis. Stats., and include 
a condominium plat of the Development for the Property (“Condominium Plat”).  For purposes of 
this Agreement, the Declaration of Condominium includes the Development site, certain public 
utility easements to be dedicated to the City and those public road right-of-way areas adjacent to 
and within the Development. A true and complete copy of the Condominium Plat is attached hereto 
as Exhibit B and is incorporated herein by reference. 

  



39582763 3 

1.04 "Improvement Plans" means the improvement, grading and landscape plans 
prepared by M Squared Engineering LLC, with last revision dated __________, _____ 
submitted by the Developer as approved by the City, along with any approved amendments 
or supplements. A true and complete copy of the Improvement Plans is attached hereto as 
Exhibit C and is incorporated herein by reference. 

1.05 "Financial Guarantee" means one or more letters of credit or development bonds 
issued in conformity with the terms and conditions of this Agreement in the amount determined 
by the "Schedule of Values for Financial Guarantees" with respect to the Property. 

1.06 "Property" means all the real property as described on Exhibit A. 

1.07 "Development" means the 35 side-by-side condominium buildings with a total of 
70 units to be constructed on the Property. 

1.08 “Condominium Owner’s Association” shall mean the condominium owner’s 
association created by and under the Declaration of Condominium for the Property. 

Article 2 
 

Term 
 

The term of this Agreement shall commence upon due execution hereof by or on behalf of 
all parties. 

Article 3 
 

Developer's Representations and Warranties 
 

The Developer represents and warrants that: 

3.01 Good Title. The Developer owns all the Property free and clear of all liens and 
encumbrances other than encumbrances shown on the title policy for the Property and mortgages 
for the purpose of developing the Property, and that it has retained sufficient rights in and to the 
balance of the Property so as to make all provisions of this Agreement valid and enforceable 
against the Developer and all successors in interest. 

3.02 Contract Documents. The Developer has examined the Contract Documents, is 
familiar with the specifications set forth therein, and has determined that they are adequate and 
sufficient for the Developer's purposes. 

3.04 Authority. The Developer has received all required approvals to enter into this 
Agreement and the signatures below shall bind the Developer. 

Article 4 
 

Duties of the Developer 
 

4.01 Storm Water Pond Maintenance. This development will utilize the quarry pond to 
store site storm water runoff. The quarry pond shall be considered “private” and shall be 



39582763 4 

maintained by the Developer and subsequently the Condominium Owners Association at its 
expense. Simultaneously, with the execution of this Agreement, Developer and City shall enter 
into a separate written Storm Water Management and System Maintenance Agreement, in a form 
substantially similar to Exhibit D, attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. The 
purpose of the Storm Water Management and System Maintenance Agreement is to grant the City, 
its employees, agents, contractors, successors, and assigns, access to and from all storm water 
facilities for purposes of access, inspection, and maintenance if necessary. 

4.02 Construction Duties of the Developer. The Developer shall construct and install the 
Improvements in a single phase and pay all costs therefor, pursuant to the applicable Contract 
Documents and Improvement Plans, as follows: 

(a) Site Grading. Grade the site pursuant to the Improvement Plans and § 14-1-73(c) 
of the City of Cedarburg Zoning Code approved by the City Engineer. The City 
acknowledges that a portion of the site (up to 1 acre in size) may be used for storing 
topsoil and/or fill during construction and may remain ungraded until completion 
of construction of all of the units in the Development. Prior to the installation of all 
underground utilities, Developer shall certify to the City that the grading has been 
completed in compliance with the aforementioned Improvement Plans. In the event 
that the actual grade is not in compliance, Developer shall pay all costs associated 
making the grade compliant and relaying the underground electrical services.  

(b) Sanitary Sewerage Systems. Developer agrees to pay for and install all onsite 
sanitary sewerage facilities including all sewer mains and service laterals necessary 
to serve the Development as depicted in the Improvement Plans. All sanitary sewer 
mains shall be dedicated to the City. The Developer also agrees to reimburse the 
City $29,864 for costs incurred by the City to extend the sanitary sewer main out 
of Forward Way.  This change is due in full upon issuance of the first building 
permit. 

(c) Water Supply Facilities. Developer agrees to pay for and install all onsite water 
supply facilities including all water mains, service laterals and appurtenances 
necessary to serve the Development as depicted in the Improvement Plans as 
approved by the City. All water mains shall be dedicated to the City. The Developer 
also agrees to reimburse the City $19,533 for costs incurred by the City to extend 
the water main out of Forward Way.  This change is due in full upon issuance of 
the first building permit. 

(d) Storm Water Drainage Facilities. Developer agrees to pay for and install all onsite 
storm water drainage facilities pursuant to § 14-2 necessary to serve the 
Development as depicted in the Improvement Plans as approved by the City. All 
on-site storm sewer, bio-filters, and grass swales within the private roadway portion 
of the Development shall be private and shall be maintained by the Developer and 
subsequent property owners in perpetuity. All onsite storm sewers within the public 
roadway portion of the Development shall be dedicated to the City. 

(e) Private Utilities. Developer shall file preliminary plans and Developer agrees to pay 
for and install private underground gas mains, electric distribution lines, cable 
television and telephone cables, pursuant to § 14-1-59. 



39582763 5 

(f) Record Drawings. Prepare record drawings for those portions of the above work 
that are being dedicated to the City, pursuant to § 14-1-52(e). Developer shall 
prepare such drawings for work completed during each phase of the Development. 
Provide full sized prints on 4 mil mylar as well as an electronic version in Auto 
Cad. 

(g) Curb and Gutter. Developer agrees to pay for and install concrete curb and gutter 
along the public road as shown on the Improvement Plans and pursuant to 
§ 14-1-54. 

(h) Sidewalks and Walking Paths. Developer agrees to pay for and install a 5-foot-wide 
concrete sidewalk on the east side of the north-south entrance roadway off of Susan 
Lane and 5-foot-wide concrete sidewalk on both sides of the east- west public 
roadway, and as shown on the Improvement Plans and as approved by the City 
Engineer, pursuant to § 14-1-67. All sidewalks installed for public use shall be 
located in the public road right-of-way and be dedicated to the City. The Developer 
and subsequent Condominium Owners Association shall be responsible for the 
clearing of snow, ice or other materials that might limit the public use of the 
sidewalks.  The recorded Condominium Declaration documents or deed restrictions 
shall require that the sidewalks and walking paths be repaired, maintained, and 
replaced by the Condominium Owner’s Association. 

 

(i) Intersection Improvements. Developer agrees to pay for and install a fully improved 
intersection with Susan Lane to include concrete curb and gutter and sidewalk as 
required by the City. Such improvements shall be dedicated to the City. 

(j) Street Improvements. Developer agrees to pay for and install street improvements, 
pursuant to § 14-1-53 and Development construction plans. The Developer shall 
also stub the public roadway to the east property line for a future roadway 
connection. All streets with urban cross-sections shall be public. All streets with 
rural cross- sections shall be private. The recorded Condominium Declaration 
documents or deed restrictions shall require that the private streets shall be privately 
owned, repaired, maintained, and replaced, by the Condominium Association. 

(k) Street Lighting. Street lighting on the private roadway portions of the site shall be 
private lighting maintained by the Developer and subsequent Condominium 
Owner’s Association as approved by the Plan Commission. On the public roadway 
portion of the sit, the Developer shall contract with Cedarburg Light & Water to 
arrange for the installation of standard coach light streetlamps on a spacing 
approved by the City pursuant to § 14-1-60. 

(l) Street Signs. The Developer agrees to pay for, and the City agrees to install street 
identification signs for the public roadway portion of the Development pursuant to 
§ 14-1-61 and any traffic control signage as required by the City Engineer. Any 
Street identification or traffic control signage on the private roadway portion of the 
Development shall be provided and installed by the Developer and maintained in 
perpetuity by the Condominium Owner’s Association. 



39582763 6 

(m) Landscaping Other Than Street Trees. Developer shall pay for and install topsoil
and establish lawn turf in all parkways and provide landscaping features as shown
in the Improvement Plans.

(n) Street Trees. Developer shall pay for street trees along the public roadway frontage
on both sides of the road, as shown on the Improvements Plans and pursuant to
§ 14-1-62. The City Forester will select the tree species and contract out the tree
planting as part of the annual street tree program. The City Forester will plant the
trees after the sidewalk and curb and gutter are installed, and the parkway turf is
established. All such trees shall be dedicated to the City.

(o) Erosion Control. Developer shall pay for, install, and maintain erosion control using
best management practices and pursuant to § 14-1-63, Chapter 14-2, and
Chapter 15-2. Developer must comply with all applicable DNR permits, the City's
Erosion Control Permit, and the Storm Water Management Permit and any
associated fees.

(p) Impact on Woods Located at the Southwest Corner. The woods located at the
southwest corner of the property are known as the Cedarburg Woods- West site in
the Southeastern Wisconsin Regional Plan Commission (SEWRPC) Report No.42.
These woods shall be preserved to the amount practicable with the impact on the
woods be kept to the absolute minimum.  Any cutting of woods shall be done
outside of the approved improvement plan and must be approved in advance and in
writing by the City Forester and at the expense of the Condominium Owner’s
Association.  Such restriction shall be shown on the condominium Plat.

(q) Public Sidewalk Dedication. Developer hereby grants and dedicates to the public,
all sidewalks adjacent to public roadways, to be used and accessed by the public
for all uses allowed by applicable law, standard, or regulation. Such grant shall be
expressly stated on the Condominium Plat for the Development.

(r) Roadway Use and Access Easement Grant. Developer hereby grants to the public,
and to the City, its employees, agents, contractors, successors and assigns,
pedestrian and motor vehicle use and access to and from the Development within
the public road dedication outlot set forth on the Condominium Plat.

(s) Emergency Services and Utility Access Easement Grant.  Developer herby grants
to the City, its employees, agents, contractors, successors, and assigns, pedestrian,
and motor vehicle access over, across, through and under all private roads and
outlots, within the Development for purposes of pedestrian and vehicular access to
maintain and repair all public utilities within the Development and for pedestrian
and vehicular access for all governmental emergency services, including but not
limited to, police, fire, ambulance and emergency government.  Such Easement
grant shall be expressly stated on the Final Condominium Plat for the Development.

4.03 Time for Completion. Each of the items in § 4.02 above shall be completed on the 
dates specified in this Agreement. Pursuant to § 13-1-69(o)(2)(4), if a building permit is not issued 
for the first condominium unit in the Development within one (1) year of receiving the PUD 
zoning, the PUD district zoning for the Property shall be automatically discontinued and replaced 
with the zoning designation that existed prior to the PUD rezoning. 

Theresa Hanaman
per the City code he can seek an extension with the plan commission



39582763 7 

4.04 Impact and Connection Fees. Subject to the provisions of any State of Wisconsin 
law, prior to issuance of any building permit for a condominium building and payable at the time 
of building permit application, the following impact and connection fees will be due for each 
condominium unit: 

Library Building Fee  $   1,546.36 per unit 

Police Station Fee  $   1,501.49 per unit 

Park Facilities Fee  $   1,438.58 per unit 

Water Supply Facilities Fee  $   2,053.92 per unit  

Sanitary Sewer Connection Fee $   2,710.75 per unit 

Fee in Lieu of Parkland Dedication Fee $   847.26 per unit 

The fees set forth above are based on the City’s rates for 2023. 

All the above impact and connection fees are subject to an annual adjustment 
pursuant to § 3-6-9 of the Code of Ordinances. 

4.05 Developer Payments. 

(a) Parkland Dedication and Fee in Lieu of Parkland Dedication. Developer shall pay
a fee-in-lieu of Parkland Dedication for the Development in the amount of $847.26
per condominium unit. The fee for each unit is due at the time of Building permit
issuance for such unit.

(b) City Street Trees. The Developer shall pay the City of Cedarburg for furnishing and
planting 46 street in the initial phase of the development trees at $400.00 each for
a total of $18,400.00. The City Forestry Department will hold these funds in a
segregated street tree account and will purchase and plant street trees when the
roadway improvements are completed. This charge is due in full upon issuance of
the first Building permit.

(c) Other Improvement Costs. Developer is responsible to pay for all reasonable
engineering, administrative and legal fees associated with the Development, during
the installation of public utilities, including the cost of construction inspection,
materials testing, preparation of as-built drawings, stormwater review, and other
fees associated therewith.

(d) Account Statements. Developer shall review and approve all engineering,
inspection, and attorney draw requests received by the City and pertaining to the
Improvements. The City shall provide copies of each such request with supporting
documentation to the Developer.(e) Recording Fees. Developer shall pay to the
Register of Deeds for Ozaukee County all recording fees due for the recording of
this Agreement, the Declaration of Condominium, Condominium Plat, Storm
Water Management, and System Maintenance Agreement and any separate



39582763 8 

dedication instruments and grants of easements as are directly attributable to the 
Development. 

4.06 Condominium Owner’s Association. The Developer agrees that there will be an 
incorporated Condominium Owners Association that will be responsible for the of the private 
streets, storm sewer, storm water ponds, quarry, bio-filters, landscaping, maintenance (including 
snow removal) of all private and public sidewalks and terrace area along the public portion of 
roadway and Stone Lake Circle, and maintenance of all Common Areas within the Development.  
The Condominium Owners Association shall acknowledge the private road, the inherent danger 
due to the depth of the quarry, prohibit recreational use of the quarry, and indemnify the City of 
any responsibility due to the quarry.  The responsibilities of the Association, including but not 
limited to those set forth in this section, will be set forth in recorded Declaration. This Agreement 
and the Condominium Plat shall be disclosed in the Declaration. Developer agrees that a capital 
replacement reserve fund for the repair and replacement of the private roads within the 
Subdivision, shall be included within any due’s requirement for Unit owners within the 
Subdivision, and disclosed within the Declaration. 

4.07 Financial Guarantee. Developer shall provide an irrevocable letter of credit or an 
approved development bond to the City, which shall not expire prior to fourteen (14) months 
following the completion of all Improvements being dedicated to the City shown on the 
Improvement Plans, for the estimated costs of the installation of all such Improvements including: 
erosion control, public roadway, public utilities, sidewalks, inspection, and engineering fees. The 
Developer may apply for a reduction of the Financial Guarantee pursuant to § 14-1-51 of the 
Cedarburg Zoning Code Regulations. The City shall be authorized from time to time to draw 
against the Financial Guarantee for costs incurred and due the City pursuant to this Agreement if 
the Developer has not made payments or not completed required work in a timely manner as 
determined by the City Engineer. 

The amount of the Financial Guarantee shall be based on the Bids/Estimates for the Improvements 
as set forth in the Schedule of Values in § 4.08 of this Agreement. 
 

4.08 Schedule of Values for Financial Guarantee. Developer shall provide the Financial 
Guarantee for the Phase 1 improvements which shall be dated no later than seven (7) days prior to 
the commencement of construction of the Improvements, in the amounts set for in § 4.06 and the 
Schedule of Values attached hereto. The Financial Guarantee shall be sufficient to cover the 
estimated costs to complete the Phase 1 Improvements for the Development that are being 
dedicated to the City based on § 4.02 and the Schedule of Values for the Development which 
include, but are not limited to, the required sewer and water main extensions and street signs. Prior 
to the commencement of construction of any improvements in Phase 2 of the Development, 
Developer shall provide an irrevocable letter of credit or an approved development bond to the 
City, which shall not expire prior to fourteen (14) month following the completion of the 
improvements, in the amounts set forth in a Phase 1 or Phase 2 schedule of values to be approved 
by the City Engineer and attached to this Agreement as an Addendum. Each Phase of the 
Development shall be defined as follows: 

(a) Phase 1 shall consist of Condominium Units 1 through 32 

(b) Phase 2 shall consist of Condominium Units 33 through 70 

[SCHEDULE OF VALUES FOR FINANCIAL GUARANTEE ON NEXT PAGE] 



39582763 9 

 
[THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK] 



39582763 10 

SCHEDULE OF VALUES FOR FINANCIAL GUARANTEE 
Item 

 ESTIMATED 
COST 

Drainage Swales, ditch preparation and construction of storm 
bio swales $   
Erosion control including Silt fence, tracking pad, hay bale 
ditch checks, temporary sediment traps, outlet pipe, and rip-
rap. $     
Sanitary Sewer and Laterals $ 
Water Main and Laterals $   
Storm Sewer and Laterals $ 
Fine Grading of Street $ 
Concrete Curb and Gutter $ 
Road Base $ 
Asphalt Pavement binder course $ 
Concrete Sidewalk $ 
Seeding and Mulching $ 
Asphalt Pavement surface layer $   
Street Lighting $   
Street Signs $     
Legal Fees (City) $     
Inspection Fees (including but not limited to City 
Administration fees) $   
  

Sub Total of Construction and Related Costs (Rounded) $  
  

Add 20% additional Contingency $ 
 
THE SCHEDULE OF VALUES FOR EACH LINE ITEM IS 
BASED ON ESTIMATES.  ACTUAL LINE-ITEM COSTS 
MAY VARY.  THE TOTAL FINANCIAL GUARANTEE IS 
AVAILABLE TO THE CITY FOR COMPLETION OF EACH 
LINE ITEM.  THE CITY IS NOT ACTING IN A FIDUCIARY 
CAPACITY AS TO THE FINANCIAL GUARANTEE.  
  

 
TOTAL OF FINANCIAL GUARANTEE:                                        $   

 
  



39582763 11 

4.09 Completion Schedule. Developer shall complete the Improvements for the 
Development listed below as follows: 

(a) Phase 1 underground utilities including watermains, sanitary sewer, storm sewer, 
and appurtenances completed on or before May 31, 2024. 

(b) Phase 1 roadway base, concrete curb and gutter, and binder asphalt completed on 
or before May 31, 2024. 

(c) Phase 1 natural gas, electric, telephone, sidewalks, and cable televisions shall be 
completely installed prior to the earlier of the request for an initial (first) occupancy 
permit for homes or the installation of final course of asphalt. 

(d) Phase 1 roadway final course of asphalt to be installed within fourteen (14) months 
of the installation of the binder asphalt course and within the financial guarantee 
period 

4.10 Quality of Work. 

(a) All work performed under the provisions of this Agreement shall be done in a 
workmanlike manner in accordance with prevailing standards in the construction 
industry and all Improvements being dedicated to the City shall be done in 
accordance with established standards and specifications of the City as directed by 
the City Engineer. 

(b) The City shall have the right during the course of construction of Improvements 
being dedicated to the City under this Agreement to direct the Developer to issue 
contract change orders to be paid by Developer, and to amend the plans and 
specifications, but only to the extent required to assure that construction will 
conform to City standards and specifications. All contract change orders proposed 
by Developer involving public rights of way or easements shall be approved by the 
City. 

 

Article 5 
 

Indemnification 
 

5.01 Indemnification Agreement. 

(a) In addition to, and not to the exclusion or prejudice of, any other provision of this 
Agreement, the Developer shall indemnify and hold harmless the City, its officers, 
agents and employees, and shall defend the same, from and against any and all 
liability, claims, loss, damages, interest, action, suits, judgments, costs, expenses, 
reasonable attorney’s fees and the like, to whomsoever owed and by whomsoever 
and whenever brought or obtained, which may in any manner result from the work 
performed or the responsibilities of the Developer under this Agreement, expressly 
including, though not limited to, negligence and the breach of any duty whether 
imposed by statutes, ordinances, regulations, order, decree or law of any other sort 



39582763 12 

or by contract, on the part of the Developer or its officers, employees, agents or 
independent contractors, in carrying out the work and in supervising and 
safeguarding the same in any respect whatever, and including claims arising under 
any federal, state or local law, including Worker's Compensation laws and 
including negligence and the breach of any duty whether imposed by statutes, 
ordinances, regulations, order, decree or law of any other sort or by contract, on the 
part of the Developer or its officers, employees, agents or independent contractors, 
in carrying out the work and in supervising and safeguarding the same in any 
respect. 

(b) If a claim is made against the City related to work performed by the Developer or 
the responsibilities of the Developer under this Agreement, the City agrees that it 
shall, within ten (10) days of its notice thereof, notify the Developer and any 
liability insurance carrier, which has been designated by the Developer. The 
Developer shall thereafter provide full cooperation in defense of the claim. The 
Developer shall, at the option of the City, defend any claim on behalf of the City in 
which case the Developer or its insurer is authorized to act on behalf of the City in 
responding to any claim to the extent of this indemnity. Such authorization includes 
the right to investigate, negotiate, settle, and litigate any such claim and control of 
the defense thereof subject to the approval of the City. 

5.02 Extent of Damages. In every case, but not as a limitation on the liability of the 
Developer to the City, where judgment is recovered against the City on any such claim as provided 
in this Article 5, if notice has been given to Developer under § 5.01 above, any judgment thereon 
shall be conclusive upon the Developer as to the amount of damages and as to its liability therein; 
provided, however, notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, the City shall 
reserve and maintain all of its rights and remedies to pursue recovery of all legal and equitable 
remedies. 

5.03 Limitations as to Financial Guarantee. It is expressly understood and agreed by the 
City, unless specifically directed and authorized by the Developer, that the Financial Guarantee as 
required of the Developer pursuant to § 4.07 above, is not subject to any draw by the City, or any 
other party or person, to pay for any, or all, claims for personal injury and property damage arising 
from the construction or installation of such Improvements, but that the Financial Guarantee is 
exclusively limited to the payment for the Improvements not provided for by the Developer 
pursuant to the terms hereof, and for no other purposes. 

Article 6 
 

Compliance 
 

6.01 Compliance With Law and Regulations. The Developer shall, in the performance 
of this Agreement, comply with, and give all stipulations and representations required by all 
applicable federal, state, and local laws, ordinances and regulations. The Developer shall also 
require such compliance, stipulations, and representations with respect to any contract entered into 
by Developer with others pertaining to the work covered by this Agreement. 

6.02 Public Records Law. The Developer understands that the City is bound by the 
Wisconsin Public Records Law, Wis. Stat. Sec.19.21, et. Seq., Pursuant to Wis. Stat. Sec. 19.36(3), 
City may be obligated to produce, to a third party, the records of Developer that are “produced or 



39582763 13 

collected” by Developer under this Agreement (“Records”). Developer is further directed to Wis. 
Stat. Sec. 19.21, et. Seq., for the statutory definition of Records subject to disclosure under this 
paragraph, and Developer acknowledges that it has read and understands that definition. 
Irrespective of any other term of this Agreement, Developer is (1) obligated to retain Records for 
seven years from the date of the Record’s creation, and (2) produce such Records to City if, in 
City’s determination, City is required to produce the Records to a third party in response to a public 
records request. Developer’s failure to retain and produce Records as required by this paragraph 
shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement, and Developer must defend and hold the City 
harmless from liability due to such breach. 

Article 7 
 

Conditions and Waivers 
 

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, the City shall have no duty to issue 
building permits for construction of buildings within any phase unless and until all the following 
have occurred: 

7.01 Improvements. Construction of the Improvements for the Development, other than 
the final course of asphalt paving of streets and the City’s planting of street trees, for each 
applicable phase are completed pursuant to § 4.02, and the Improvements are dedicated and 
accepted by the City, in accordance with the schedule specified in Section 4.09. 

(a)  The binder course of bituminous paving of streets, completion of which shall be a 
condition to issuance of building permits for units subsequent there to; 

(b) Installation of street identification signs and parkway seeding, and; 

(c) No building permit shall be issued prior to providing the City with adequate proof 
of contract and payment for installation of natural gas, electric, telephone, and cable television. 

(d) Notwithstanding the foregoing Developer may obtain an early start permit for up 
to 3 buildings (6 condominium units) in the Development as long as an accessible gravel base road 
has been installed that gives proper access, as reasonably determined by the City, to governmental 
emergency services, including, but not limited to, police, fire, ambulance, and emergency 
government.  It shall be the Developers responsibility to maintain the gravel road and clear snow 
to assure access to the early start buildings 24 hours per day and 7 days a week.  

7.02 Impact Fees. The Developer has paid the fees referenced in 4.05 (a) and (b) for the 
condominium units for which the building permit is requested and all impact and connection fees 
for the issuance of a building permit for such condominium unit. 

7.03 Grading Complete. The Developer has completed the work required on the 
Improvement Plans to rough grade, which shall accommodate proper and positive surface water 
drainage substantially in accordance with the Improvement Plans. 



39582763 14 

Article 8 
 

Additional Terms 
 

8.01 ___. Developer and City agree that if there is a failure to substantially complete any 
of the improvements prior to 2027, there shall be a reversion of those portion(s) of the property 
where the improvements have not been completed to non-PUD District status pursuant to § 13-1-
69 (n)(2) of the City Code. 

8.02 Time is of Essence. The times of performance of the terms and requirements of this 
Agreement and of the satisfaction and waiver of the conditions hereof are essential to the whole of 
this Agreement. 

8.03 Dedication. Subject to the applicable provisions of the City Ordinances, as 
amended, upon the final approvals of the Common Council and recording of the Condominium 
Plat, the public utility easements dedicated therein by the Developer may be accepted by the City.  
Additionally, the Developer shall, without charge to the City, upon completion of all of the 
Improvements being dedicated to the City pursuant to § 4.02, unconditionally give, grant, convey, 
and fully dedicate the same to the City, and its successors and assigns forever, free and clear of all 
encumbrances whatsoever, including, without limitation, any and all structures, mains, conduits, 
pipes, lines, equipment, and appurtenances pertaining to such Improvements. After such 
Dedication, the City shall be solely responsible for the maintenance, repair and replacement of 
such Improvements and have the right to connect or integrate other Improvements or public 
facilities to the Improvements hereunder as the City decides, without payment or award to, or 
consent required of, the Developer. 

8.04 No Waiver: Remedies. The failure of any party to insist upon the strict and prompt 
performance of the terms, covenants, agreements, and conditions herein contained, or any of them, 
upon any other party imposed, shall not constitute, or be construed as a waiver or relinquishment 
of any parties’ rights thereafter to enforce any such term, covenant, agreement, or condition, but 
the same shall continue in full force and effect.  In no event shall any terms or conditions of this 
Agreement be deemed or interpreted as a waiver by the City or its insurer of any Statutory 
immunities, defenses, or other rights provided by law, including, but not limited to, notice rights 
under Chapter 893, Wis. Stats., damage limitations and statutory immunities or any kind.  To the 
extent that indemnification is available and enforceable, neither the City nor its insurer shall be 
liable in indemnity or contribution for an amount greater than the limits of liability for municipal 
claims established by Wisconsin Law.  
 

8.05 Notices. All notices and other communications provided for under this Agreement 
shall be in writing (including telefax communications) and mailed (certified), sent by facsimile, or 
personally delivered:  

If to the City, as follows: With a copy to: 
 
Mike Wieser Attorney Michael Herbrand 
Director of Engineering and Development Houseman and Feind, LLP 
Cedarburg City Hall Attorneys at Law 
W63 N645 Washington Avenue 1650 9th Avenue 
Cedarburg, WI 53012 Grafton, WI 53024 
Fax: (262) 387-2051 Fax: (262) 377-6080 



39582763 15 

 
 
If to Developer, as follows:                                        With a copy to: 
 
Craig Caliendo, CEO 
Stone Lake Development, Inc. 
700 Pilgrim Parkway #100 
Elm Grove, WI 53122  
 
 
 

or, as to each party, at such other address as shall be designated by such party in a written notice 
to the other party in accordance herewith. Delivery of all such notices and communications shall 
be deemed complete, (a) if mailed, when deposited in the mail for certified mail, return receipt 
requested, postage prepaid, or (b) if sent by facsimile, when confirmed as being received by the 
party to whom faxed or delivered, or (c) when personally delivered. 
 

8.06  Force Majeure. The obligations of either of the parties hereunder shall be suspended 
to the extent that it is hindered or prevented from complying therewith because of labor 
disturbances, including strikes and lockouts, acts of God, fires, storms, accidents, or any cause 
whatsoever beyond the control of the parties. 

8.07 Amendments. No amendment, modification, termination, or waiver of any 
provision of this Agreement, nor consent to any departure from this Agreement shall in any event 
be effective unless the same shall be in writing and signed by both parties, and it shall be effective 
only in the specific instance and for the specific purpose for which given. 

8.08 Assignment. This Agreement, and the interests hereunder, shall not be assigned 
except with the prior, written consent of the City. 

8.09 Survival. All of the terms, conditions, and provisions of this Agreement, including 
but not limited to, all indemnification provisions, shall survive the completion of this Agreement. 

8.10 Severability of Provisions. Any provision of this Agreement which is prohibited or 
unenforceable shall be ineffective to the extent of such prohibition or unenforceability without 
invalidating the remaining provisions of this Agreement. 

8.11 Headings. Article and Section headings in this Agreement are included for 
convenience of reference only and shall not constitute a part of this Agreement for any other 
purpose. 

8.12 Integration of Terms. This Agreement represents the entire agreement of the parties. 

 

 

 

 



39582763 16 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed by their 
respective authorized officers or agents as of the date first above written.  

 
CITY OF CEDARBURG 
 
 
 
by:   
 Michael O’Keefe, Mayor 

 
 

Countersigned: 
 
   
Tracie Sette, City Clerk 

 
 
STATE OF WISCONSIN) 
          ) ss 
COUNTY OF OZAUKEE) 
 

Personally, came before me this   day of March ____, 2023, the above-named Michael 
O’Keefe, Mayor, and Tracie Sette, City Clerk, to me known to be the persons who executed the 
foregoing instrument and acknowledged the same. 

 

   
Notary Public, State of Wisconsin 
My Commission:   
  

 
  



39582763 17 

STONE LAKE DEVELOPMENT, INC. 
 
by:   
 Craig Caliendo, CEO 

 
STATE OF WISCONSIN) 
    ) ss 
COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE) 
 

Personally, came before me this   day of March 2023, the above-named Gregory 
James, to me known to be the person who executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged 
the same on behalf of Condo Development, Inc. by its authority. 

 

 

   
Notary Public, State of Wisconsin 
My commission:    

 
 
 
 
Drafted by: 
City of Cedarburg 
 
After recording, please return to: 
Tracie Sette, City Clerk 
City of Cedarburg 
P.O. Box 49 
Cedarburg, WI 53012-0049 
  



39582763 18 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Legal Description of Property 
 
 

[To be inserted] 
 
The Tax Key Number for the Property is   



39582763 19 

EXHIBIT B 
 

Condominium Plat 
[To be inserted] 

 
  



39582763 20 

EXHIBIT C 
 

Improvements Plans, including Landscape Plans, Completed by  
 

[To be inserted] 
 

  



39582763 21 

EXHIBIT D 
 

Storm Water Management and System Maintenance Agreement 
 

[To be inserted] 
 















































































UNIT
1

UNIT
2

UNIT
3

UNIT
4

UNIT
6 UNIT

5

UNIT
7 UNIT

8

UNIT
9

UNIT
10

UNIT
11

UNIT
12

UNIT
13

UNIT
14

UNIT
15

UNIT
16

UNIT
17

UNIT
18

UNIT
19

UNIT
20

UNIT
31UNIT

32

UNIT
21

UNIT
22

UNIT
23

UNIT
24

UNIT
25

UNIT
26

UNIT
27

UNIT
28

UNIT
29

UNIT
30

EXPANSION LANDS
11.429 ACRES
497,855 SQ.FT.
LOT 3, CSM XXXX

CONDOMINIUM LANDS
27.5337 ACRES

1,199,370 SQ.FT.
LOT 2, CSM XXXX

CONDOMINIUM LANDS
0.9025 ACRES
39,311 SQ.FT.
LOT 1, CSM XXXX

M SQUARED ENGINEERING LLC
N19 W6719 COMMERCE CT
CEDARBURG, WI 53012
PHONE (262) 376-4246
msquaredengineering.com

SHEET  1  of  XTHIS INSTRUMENT DRAFTED BY ANTHONY J. GROMACKI, PLS-2090

STONE LAKE CONDOMINIUM
CITY OF CEDARBURG AND TOWN OF CEDARBURG

OZAUKEE COUNTY, WISCONSIN

00 150' 300'75'

BA
SI

S 
O

F 
BE

AR
IN

GS
W

IS
CO

N
SI

N
 S

PC
 S

O
U

TH
 Z

O
N

E
N

AD
 8

3 
(2

01
1)

 E
PO

CH
 2

01
0.

00
EA

ST
 L

IN
E 

O
F 

TH
E 

N
E 

1/
4

SE
CT

IO
N

 2
2-

10
-2

1
RE

CO
RD

ED
 A

S 
N

.2
°1

3'
40

"W
.

GRAPHIC SCALE
1 INCH = 150 FEET

I, ANTHONY J. GROMACKI, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT I HAVE SURVEYED THE ABOVE DESCRIBED PROPERTY ACCORDING
TO OFFICIAL RECORDS, AND THAT THIS PLAT IS A TRUE AND CORRECT REPRESENTATION OF THE EXTERIOR BOUNDARY
LINES, PREVIOUSLY DEDICATED PUBLIC ROADS, ENCUMBERING EASEMENTS, AND THE LOCATION OF IMPROVEMENTS
CONSTRUCTED OR TO BE CONSTRUCTED UPON THE PROPERTY.

THIS CONDOMINIUM PLAT IS A CORRECT REPRESENTATION OF "STONE LAKE CONDOMINIUM" AS PROPOSED AT THE
DATE HEREOF, AND THE IDENTIFICATION AND LOCATION OF EACH UNIT, AND TO THE EXTENT FEASIBLE, THE
COMMON ELEMENTS CAN BE DETERMINED FROM THIS PLAT. THE UNDERSIGNED SURVEYOR MAKES NO
CERTIFICATION AS TO THE ACCURACY OF THE DIAGRAMMATIC FLOOR PLANS OF THE BUILDINGS CONTAINED IN THE
UNITS OR THE APPROXIMATE DIMENSIONS AND FLOOR AREAS THEREOF.

ANTHONY J. GROMACKI, PLS-2090 DATE

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE:

1. COMMON ELEMENTS ARE ALL AREAS WITHIN THE CONDOMINIUM AND OUTSIDE OF THE UNITS.

2. REFER TO SECTION X OF THE DECLARATION OF CONDOMINIUM FOR DESCRIPTIONS OF THE LIMITED COMMON
ELEMENTS.

3. THE EXACT LOCATION AND POSITION OF BUILDINGS AS SHOWN ON THIS PLAT ARE SUBJECT TO RELOCATION
AND REPOSITIONING WITHIN THE BUILDING ENVELOPES BY THE DECLARANT, AT THE  DECLARANT'S SOLE
DISCRETION, IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE DECLARATION.

4. THE DECLARANT HAS THE SOLE RIGHT TO DETERMINE THE LOCATION, SIZE, QUALITY AND OTHER SIMILAR
FEATURES OF THE EXPANSION LANDS, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION THE LIMITED COMMON ELEMENTS,
GENERAL COMMON ELEMENTS, AND THE UNITS.

5. THE 60' WIDE PUBLIC ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY OF STONE LAKE CIRCLE AND FUTURE ROADWAY STUB WAS
DEDICATED BY CSM NO. XXXX, WHICH WAS RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NO. XXXXXXX. SEE SHEET 2.

NOTES:

DECLARANT: STONE LAKE DEVELOPMENT, INC.

PRELIMINARY

LOTS ONE (1), AND TWO (2) OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. XXXX, BEING PART OF PART OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4
OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4, AND PART OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 22, TOWNSHIP
10 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, IN THE TOWN OF CEDARBURG AND THE CITY OF CEDARBURG, OZAUKEE COUNTY,
WISCONSIN.

SAID PARCELS CONTAIN 1,238,681 SQUARE FEET  OR 28.4362 ACRES.

CONDOMINIUM LANDS:

LOT THREE (3) OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. XXXX, BEING PART OF PART OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4
OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4, AND PART OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 22,
TOWNSHIP 10 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, IN THE TOWN OF CEDARBURG AND THE CITY OF CEDARBURG,
OZAUKEE COUNTY, WISCONSIN.

SAID PARCEL CONTAINS 497,855 SQUARE FEET  OR 11.4292 ACRES.

EXPANSION LANDS:

SHEET INDEX
SHEET 2 BOUNDARY DETAILS
SHEET 3 X
SHEET 4 X
SHEET 5 X
SHEET 6 X

PRELIMINARY



CURVE TABLE

NO.

C1

C2

C3

C4

C5

C6

C7

C8

C9

C10

C11

C12

C13

C14

C15

ARC

8.26

15.33

64.46

75.40

77.53

5.15

12.90

14.55

53.14

96.42

101.22

219.12

184.66

112.40

168.60

RADIUS

70.00

130.00

353.37

413.37

50.00

9.21

470.00

530.00

51.49

1205.82

1265.82

381.61

321.61

120.00

180.00

DELTA

6°45'31"

6°45'31"

10°27'04"

10°27'04"

88°50'52"

32°00'45"

1°34'23"

1°34'23"

59°08'23"

4°34'53"

4°34'53"

32°53'56"

32°53'56"

53°40'07"

53°40'07"

CHORD

N06°54'34"W

N06°54'34"W

N05°03'47"W

N05°03'47"W

N44°35'11"E

N15°50'38"W

N32°38'12"W

S32°38'12"E

S61°25'11"E

N86°43'11"E

N86°43'11"E

N67°58'46"E

N67°58'46"E

N24°41'45"E

N24°41'45"E

DIST.

8.25

15.33

64.37

75.30

70.00

5.08

12.90

14.55

50.82

96.39

101.19

216.12

182.14

108.34

162.51

TANGENT

N03°31'48"W

N03°31'48"W

N00°09'45"E

N00°09'45"E

N89°00'37"E

N00°09'45"E

N31°51'00"W

S31°51'00"E

S31°51'00"E

N89°00'37"E

N89°00'37"E

N84°25'44"E

N84°25'44"E

N51°31'48"E

N51°31'48"E

TANGENT

N10°17'19"W

N10°17'19"W

N10°17'19"W

N10°17'19"W

N00°09'45"E

N31°51'00"W

N33°25'24"W

S33°25'24"E

N89°00'37"E

N84°25'44"E

N84°25'44"E

N51°31'48"E

N51°31'48"E

N02°08'19"W

N02°08'19"W

LINE TABLE

NO.

L1

L2

L3

L4

L5

L6

L7

L8

L9

L10

BEARING

S87°17'44"W

S87°17'44"W

N03°31'48"W

N03°31'48"W

N10°17'19"W

N10°17'19"W

N00°09'45"E

N00°09'45"E

N31°51'00"W

N56°34'36"E

DIST.

3.69

60.01

11.27

10.40

151.91

151.91

63.69

146.40

16.87

60.00

LINE TABLE

NO.

L11

L12

L13

L14

L15

L16

L17

L18

L19

BEARING

N89°00'37"E

N89°00'37"E

N51°31'48"E

N51°31'48"E

N02°08'19"W

N02°08'19"W

N87°51'41"E

S02°07'38"E

N87°51'41"E

DIST.

168.00

145.43

98.54

98.54

31.24

91.24

64.82

60.00

4.81

EXPANSION LANDS
11.429 ACRES
497,855 SQ.FT.
LOT 3, CSM XXXX

CONDOMINIUM LANDS
27.5337 ACRES

1,199,370 SQ.FT.
LOT 2, CSM XXXX

CONDOMINIUM LANDS
0.9025 ACRES
39,311 SQ.FT.
LOT 1, CSM XXXX

M SQUARED ENGINEERING LLC
N19 W6719 COMMERCE CT
CEDARBURG, WI 53012
PHONE (262) 376-4246
msquaredengineering.com

SHEET  2  of  XTHIS INSTRUMENT DRAFTED BY ANTHONY J. GROMACKI, PLS-2090

STONE LAKE CONDOMINIUM
CITY OF CEDARBURG AND TOWN OF CEDARBURG

OZAUKEE COUNTY, WISCONSIN

00 150' 300'75'

BA
SI

S 
O

F 
BE

AR
IN

GS
W

IS
CO

N
SI

N
 S

PC
 S

O
U

TH
 Z

O
N

E
N

AD
 8

3 
(2

01
1)

 E
PO

CH
 2

01
0.

00
EA

ST
 L

IN
E 

O
F 

TH
E 

N
E 

1/
4

SE
CT

IO
N

 2
2-

10
-2

1
RE

CO
RD

ED
 A

S 
N

.2
°1

3'
40

"W
.

GRAPHIC SCALE
1 INCH = 150 FEET

PRELIMINARY

DETAIL
SCALE 1" = 20'

LEGEND
=  FOUND PLSS MONUMENT PER SEWRPC DOSSIER
=  FOUND 1.3" O.D. (1" I.D.) IRON PIPE
=  FOUND 3/4" x 18" REBAR - PER CSM XXXX
=  EXTERIOR BOUNDARY LINE
=  CITY-TOWN MUNICIPAL BOUNDARY LINE
=  EASEMENT LINE
=  PLSS LINE



JACKSON DISTRIBUTION & WAREHOUSE 
 

To:  City of Cedarburg Plan Commission Prepared by:  Jonathan P Censky, City Planner 

Agenda Item: 6.B. Meeting Date:  November 6, 2023 
General Information  

Applicant: Jackson Distribution and Warehouse, LLC 

Status of Applicant: Future Owner 

Location: Lot #2, Business Park 

Requested Action: Site, Architectural, Landscaping Plan Approval 
 

Existing Zoning: M-3 Business Park 

Lot Size: 10.6-acres 

Existing Land Use: Vacant 

 
Report: 
The applicant is proposing a multi-tenant distribution and warehouse building within the City’s 
Business Park on lot #2 of the certified survey map that you approved last month. This building is 
proposed at 154,923 square feet in size and 39’ in height. Section 13-1-61(b)(2), of the zoning code 
lists, among others, permitted uses in the M-3 District as follows: buildings for the storage of goods 
and materials, where such goods and materials are stored inside the building, provided such building 
is not a mini warehouse building subdivided into more than three (3) multiple warehouse and storage 
facilities containing less than one thousand five hundred (1,500) square feet each and available for 
lease.  
 
This building is proposed for the back lot in the park that is on the curve in Forward Way and backs 
up to the pending Stonelake Development to the south and to the west is the Fairway Village 
subdivision. This building will be divided into separate leasable units of around 15,000 square feet in 
size with the main façade fronting Forword Way, the secondary facade fronts to the south. All loading 
docks will be on at the west or the east end of the building.  
 
Site Plan  
While my review indicates that the plans are compliant with the M-3 district regulations, the plans 
propose the lot coverage right at the maximum limit allowed by the code. Section 13-1-61 (h) states 
that the lot coverage by buildings, accessory structures and surface parking and driveways shall 
occupy a maximum of 70% of the lot. Our calculation indicates that the proposed lot coverage is 
69.8%. Accordingly, the applicant is aware that there is no room for future building expansion or for 
additional parking if the need arises. The plan proposes 104 parking stalls situated along the front 
and back sides of the building with loading docks at the far ends of the building.  
 
 
 



Site/Architectural/Landscaping Plan 
Jackson Distribution & warehouse 
November 6, 2023 
Page 2 
 
Architectural 
This single-story building is located along the curve in Forward Way with one section facing to the 
north and the other section facing northwest. The building will be constructed of pre-cast insulated 
concrete panels on all four elevations. To provide interest, the building will be painted using five 
separate colors of a repeating white, grey, and brown scheme with a decorative brown course that 
extends around the entire building at the height of the top of the blue windows. For each tenant 
space, the plan shows an aluminum store front entryway system.  
 
Exterior lighting 
According to their plan, the exterior lighting plan consists of a combination of down-lit pole mounted 
fixtures, wall mounted and canopy fixtures. The down-lit wall fixtures will be mounted at a height of 
17’ and generally spaced equally around the entire building. At the northeast and west side of the site 
the plan shows 5 pole fixtures at a height of 17’ mounted on a 2’ pedestal. The canopy lighting 
fixtures are down lit under the entryway canopies. Staff reviewed indicates that the lighting plan 
proposes no point source lighting and that it is compliant with city requirements.     
 
Landscaping 
The landscaping plan proposes to enhance the look of the building with planting of Swamp White 
Oak, Burr Oak, and Red Oak trees along the front and rear façade and that planting scheme will be 
further enhance by low growth foundational plantings deciduous and evergreen shrubs and 
perennials and decorative grasses. In the open space directly in front of the building and along the 
westerly drive, they propose a planting mix of White Spruce, Black Hills Spruce, White Pine, and 
Douglas Fir Trees.    
 
Staff Comments: 
As noted, the plans are code compliant, but they are at the maximum limit as regards the lot 
coverage. Accordingly, the applicant will need to monitor their mix of uses to ensure that their parking 
is adequate going forward as there is no room to add parking in the future under current code 
requirements. Staff would also note that directly west of the loading docks on the west side of the 
building is the Fairway Village subdivision. To address potential future problems with noise and 
lighting, staff recommends that the developer create a substantial landscaped berm along the south 
drive, in line with the loading docks. In addition, your approval should be subject to the following: 

• Fire Department recommends connecting water mains to create a looped system (confirm with 
Cedarburg Light & Water).  

• Fire protection feature locations such as FDC, fire alarm panels, knox boxes, etc, to be 
determined as the project progresses. Parking shall be prohibited in front of FDC. 

• The elevator should be large enough to fit EMS equipment. 
• Onsite traffic circulation should be designed to ensure adequate turning radius for Fire 

Department apparatus.  
•  Radio coverage booster system and/or testing may be needed. 
• Ensure the overhang is tall enough to fit fire/EMS equipment. 
• Future storage uses may require additional fire protection features. 

 
 
 
 



Site/Architectural/Landscaping Plan 
November 6, 2023 
Page 3 

 


































































































	Stone Lake Development Agreement.pdf
	Stone Lake Condominiums
	RECITATIONS
	AGREEMENT
	Definitions
	Article 2
	Term
	Article 3
	Developer's Representations and Warranties
	Duties of the Developer
	Library Building Fee     $   1,546.36 per unit
	Police Station Fee     $   1,501.49 per unit
	Water Supply Facilities Fee    $   2,053.92 per unit

	Article 8
	Mike Wieser Attorney Michael Herbrand

	EXHIBIT A

	2023-11-06PC_Full Packet.pdf
	Development Agreement Stonelake.pdf
	Briohn site and arch plan.pdf
	2023-11-06PC_Full Packet.pdf
	2023-11-06PC Agenda.pdf
	2023-10-02_plan_commission_minutes.pdf
	Declaration of Condominium - Stone Lake Condominium - 10-1-23.pdf
	StoneLake_CondoPlat_Prelim_10-12-2023.pdf
	StoneLake_CondoPlat_V3-Sheet 1
	Sheets and Views
	Sheet 1


	StoneLake_CondoPlat_V3-Sheet 2
	Sheets and Views
	Sheet 2



	Forward Way Lot 2 Project Summary.pdf
	Forward Way Lot 2 Project Summary.pdf
	Forward Way Lot 2 Project Summary.pdf
	20231011_101423.pdf

	Forward Way Lot 2.pdf

	Cedarway Development Resident Letter.pdf





